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o : " EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

- Principal activities Co
The principal activity of the Company is the supply of electricity and gas to commercial, resndentlal and
industrial customers and meter readlng and related services. It will continue -these- activities for the
foreseeable future : :

Section 172 (1) Statement

The Directors are fully aware of their responsnbllmes to promote the success of the company in
accordance with the requirements of Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act).

. 'Day-to- day authonty is delegated to the. Customers Business Senior Leadership Team (SLT),-and the
* Directors engage with management in setting, approving and overseeing execution of the business
.strategy and related policies. Board meetings are held’penodlcally where the Directors consider the -
"company's activities and make decisions. .

At Board meetings, the Directors review financial and ope'rationalt performance, business strategy, key
risks, stakeholder—related matters, governance, and legal and regulatory compliance.

Further details on how the Directors’ duties are discharged, and the oversight of these dutles are included
in the Directors Report and Corporate Governance Statement.

Stakeholder Engagement Statement

The Company's key stakeholders, and the ways in which it engages with them are set out in the wider
Strategic Report and Corporate Governance Statement. The below provides a summary of these
relationships which are fostered by the Company and in turn, have shaped the way the Board took
principal decisions over the year. .

STAKEHOLDER GROUPS

Employees and Trade Unions

Having people who bring a diverse range of talents and perspectlves and who feel engaged in their roles,
is fundamental to the long-term success of our business. It is crucial that we understand their values and
what motivates them and reflect this in the way we operate.

We are committed to recrumng and retaining great people - so Ilstenlng to our employees is a priority. We
communlcate with them regularly through employee surveys, team meetings, learning sessions, briefings,
our intranet, “eNZO” and regular email updates from the Managing Director of the Customers Business,
Philippe Commaret. We also frequently engage W|th Company Councils, Trade Unions and employee
networks about matters affectmg employees.

Further to this, the Company has a second survey, ‘MyVoice', which allows employees to have the
opportunity to share their experiences at work. This allows employees to bring forward their ideas on
different aspects of the business; from improving office spaces, to employee wellbeing. Additionally, a few
times a year the Company hosts a question and answer session with the managing director of the EDF
Customers business, who also forms part of the Board. This encourages transparency and openness
between directors and stakeholders; giving employees the opportunity to raise any concerns they might
have whilst also allowing the Board to take onboard this feedback and make improvements..

A more detailed breakdown can be found in our Workforce Engagement Statement below.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Customers '
 QOur vision for our customers is to be simply better - better than anyone else at solvmg customer's energy
needs. Our ambition is to be the best and most trusted for customers. :

We maintain constructive dialogue with our customers, including vulnerable customers. Providing
appropriate products and services for our customers is a priority for us. We work closely with
organisations such as Citizens Advice and Income Max to make sure we can |dent|fy and assist
customers who need extra help. . :

We hold a Standards of Conduct Advisory Panel with respected tnird parties such as Which? and Citizens
Advice to help us understand what we need to do next to best meet customer needs and deliver high
standards for every customer.

The Board continues to monitor the ongoing cost-of-living and energy market crisis, and in considering
‘such, we have established a CARE Framework. This aims to develop new customer solutions to help
support households through the ongoing volatility in the market. The concept for such was created in
January 2021 and has continued into 2022 with training being provided to all customer facing teams to
help advisors provide effective support and advice to customers facing financial hardship.

Communities .
We want to make a posmve contribution to the communities we operate in. We work |n partnershlp with.
local organisations, schools and colleges to support our projects and goals.

- As a company we have outlined our commitment to be open and transparent in our business dealings.

* Further to this, the Board is committed to social responsibility, community engagement and environmental
sustainability as demonstrated in the Companys sustainable business update and policies "(available
online).

For the most vulnerable in society, the Company's aim is to develop its internal processes and develop
more collaborative third party partnerships, including those in the community. The Company provides
funding to projects that offer expert advice and assistance at a local level, like the Seasonal Health
Interventions Network - London (SHINE London) and the wider EDF UK Group'’s (formed of EDF Energy
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, including the Company (the Group)) “Improving Energy Efficiency in
Communities” project, that's delivered by National Energy Action (NEA). .

Suppliers ’

How we conduct our business, and the impact and influence we have through our supply chain, is an
important aspect of our work. We know that we need to manage and mitigate environmental and social
impacts, so we work closely with all of our-suppliers and partners to make sure they keep to our ethical
business principles throughout their own operations. The Company also aims to integrate sustainability
into the supply chain by assessing how prospective suppliers bring social value to the-community and
implement environmental and social policies.

We set high expectatlons for ethical conduct in our supply chain. This includes requiring that our ethical
. principles are embedded across our supply chain and suppliers comply with the United Nations Global
- Compact (UNGC). :
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STRATEGIC REPORT {(CONTINUED)

Suppllers (continued) -

The Company complied with its various statutory reporting obligations in 2022 including Modern Slavery,
Gender Pay Gap and Payment Practices and Reporting. The Company actively engages with all material
suppliers and takes part in regular oversight, monitoring and feedback with them. The Company aims to
ensure all suppliers are paid promptly.

Industry and Business Associations

Through our affiliations we can gain the knowledge and skills necessary to operate in a highly competitive
marketplace. The Company and wider Group have different types of memberships and affiliations relating
to the different activities undertaken throughout the Group.

Attendance at monthly Retail Commlttee Meetings with the industry trade body (Energy UK). This forum is
used to discuss regulatory and policy issues arising and to provide direction to Energy UK when engaging
external stakeholders. Through this and other forums we collaborate to progress various consumer,
regulatory and policy matters alongside other suppliers and industry participants.

Government and Regulators '

We engage with political and regulatory stakeholders to help them understand our business better, and
so shape the policy and the environment where we operate. We have a role to play in sustalnablllty
enabling Britain to achieve Net Zero by championing the transition to a low-carbon future.

We engage directly with central Government and- other agencies such the Department for Business
Energy and Industriai Strategy, Ofgem, Competition and Markets Authority, Citizens Advice, etc to
develop policies and extra services for customers, and continue to work collaboratively with partners on
these. In light of the ongoing Crisis, engaging with the-Government and Ofgem has been more crucial
than ever in order to discuss the logistics and implementation of various price caps as well HM
Government's support packages for the public.

Impact on Principal Decisions

Engagement and maintaining strong relatlonshlps with its shareholders is of the upmost importance to the
Board of the Company (the Board) when considering items presented at Board meetings to ensure the
long-term success of the Company. :

During 2022, the Company has been faced with serious challenges due to the impact of the ongoing UK -
energy market crisis (the Crisis). The Board have played a key role during the Crisis in setting corporate
strategy so as to protect the Customers Business and further secure the long-term success of the
Company in light of the unprecedented scenarios being presented by the Crisis.

The Board have steered the Company in decrsron making on all areas of the Customers Business during
the Crisis including: .

« Hedging strategy;

* Managing the operation challenges posed by increased customer volumes;

» The ongoing communications strategy; and

« Various mitigation and crisis response actions belng taken in all areas of the Customers Business.

The Directors have had due regard to the concerns of both internal and ‘external stakeholders when
-considering the implications of any strategic decision making so as to fulfil their responsibilities to promote
the success of the Company in accordance with the Act for the financial year ending 2022 during this
challenging period.

N
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Impact on Principal Decisions (continued)

Following the launch of ‘Simply Better for Customers’, which strives to provide the best service for its
customers and puts customers at the heart of everything it does is in line with the Company’s values, EDF
was awarded the Uswitch ‘Large Supplier of the Year award in 2021, receiving a customer satisfaction
score of 74% - the highest score of all the ‘big six’ suppliers. The Customers Business also acquired
customer accounts from Utility Point,  Green Network and Zog Energy after the suppliers fell into
administration and EDF were thus appointed Supplier of Last Resort (SoLR) during the ongoing Crisis, a
process which the Board has had oversight of. In 2022 the Company maintained industry leading
customer service with a ‘Great’ rating on Trustpilot, as well as being ranked 1st out of 20 energy suppliers
by Citizen’s Advice. Being awarded this rating has provided further motivation to continuously provide the
best support the Company can for its customers, especially during the Crisis.

" As set out further in the Company’s Corporate Governance Statement, the Company acquired Pod Point
in early 2020, one of the largest electric vehicle (EV) charging providers in the UK, following the launch of
its low-carbon EV tariff “Go Electric”. “Go Electric” gives customers the chance to lease an EV while

" benefitting from lower off-peak electricity rates. The acquisition of Pod Point will allow the Company to
offer quality installations of charging solutions as part of even more attractive EV deals. In 2021 EDF also
chose to partner with DriveElectric, one of the UK's leading electric car lease providers, to provide
customers with handpicked EV leasing deals, opening up the EV market to more individuals. With the UK
Government vowing to phase-out the sale of new petrol and diesel cars by 2030, taking these decisions
was an important step forward for the Company and the wider EDF UK group in its support of Britain in
achieving its Net Zero goals. Further to this, we made the decision in 2022 to invest in CB Heating to offer
a new initiative to our customers in the form of heat pump installation services. Investing in new
technologies has been a priority over the past year in order to advance our Net Zero ambition and ensure -
the Company's long-term success. :

As a testament to the level of importance the Company puts on supporting the community, in 2020 the
Company became-a signatory of the Vulnerability Commitment (the Commitment) launched by Energy UK
in December 2020. The Commitment involves a pledge to a series of commitments, aimed at improving
the services the Company offers to.those who need it. The Company is a founding member of the
Commitment further illustrating our commitment and drive to help the vulnerable - within society. The
Company has also taken the opportunity to learn from its experience during the Pandemic has
incorporated those learnings into its response to the Commitment, with insights including where best to
provide additional support and speed of response.

In addition, 2022 saw a continued drive by the Board to review the current capabilities of the Company
including the demand of its suppliers, generators and business customers for services it already provides
whilst looking at potential future profitable beyond supply strategy and opportunities. In order to maximise
opportunities in this' area, the Company continues to engage with various stakeholders including
customers and industry and business associations in order to foster the company's business relationships
with these key stakeholders.

Workforce Engagement Statement
The Group engages, informs and consults with its workforce on matters affecting them. This is carried out

in a number of ways which gives the workforce a voice and in which our senior leaders actively
participate. Some of the key mechanisms are included below:
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES
We_Com-municate...

With our people.
. We strive to maintain a healthy employee envn'onment in which dialogue between management and our

employees is embedded in our work practices.

Management engages with employees through formal and informal channels, including regular employee
surverys, emails from the Chief Executive Officer, team meetings, face to-face gatherings, breakfast
briefings, interviews and via eNZO.

eNZO is an e-platform for sharing company newsletters, “announcements and accessmg a wide variety of
materials, i.e. company policies, company contacts and information on well- -being and company benefits
etc. In addltlon the Intranet also hosts a number of discussion forums for employees to take part in; this is
in addition to EDF Energy's Yammer page where employees can connect on a business or personal level
on a variety of topics.

We host regular question and answer sessions wnh various members of the Board, intluding the
managing director of the business. This provides a good forum for the Board to communicate with ail
employees about the latest updates within the company and wider industry news.

t

We Listen...

Through various channels including conducting annual employee engagement surveys.
Srt]rong employee engagement is especially |mportant in maintaining strong business delivery in times of
change.

‘My EDF’, is the Employee Engagement Survey conducted annually which gathers the views and

" opinions of all employees with regard to their work situation, at local level and within the EDF SA Group. It
|(r1]en(gfes areas of sattsfactlon and opportunmes for |mprovement in order to help establish priorities within
the Group. /

The results of the ‘My EDF’ Survey are discussed at Board level and are used to support the setting of
company strategy, realign company purposes / values (where identified as being required) and define
individual team objectives. This filters down to discussion on wider strategy of the Company and Group
and impacts the principal decisions taken by the directors. As a result of the feedback received in these
surveys, such findings are discussed within each team to further feedback on the specific findings and
how they can be improved. Such feedback is can then be discussed at Board level to take further
decisions and improvements on.

We Engage...

With Company Counclls and Trade Unlons '
Having a dialogue with our employee representative bodres is also embedded in our work practlces

We have continued to-engage and consult with Trade Union & Personal Contract holder structures -
Company Council, European Works Council, Corporate Social Responsrbrllty Forum, Strategy meetlngs
and Business Unit specific forums.

In 2022, discussions with our Trade Unions were especially pertinent in light of the Crisis. Through
engaging in constructive negotiations with our Trade Unions, we were able to offer our employees
additional financial support through bringing forward part of pay deals and one-off payments, anng with
online resources for employees to access.

5
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

We Support...

Equity, Diversity & Inclusion. :

Having a diverse workforce at all levels of our: company will ensure we make better decisions - for our
business and for our stakeholders. We believe that employing a diverse ‘mix of people makes us a
stronger and more sustainable business, and one that reflects the diverse society around us. We also
value and encourage diversity of thought, perspective and experience in all respects.

In 2021, the Company started monitoring the diversity of senior leadership in terms of Gender, Ethnicity,
Sexual Orientation and Disability. The Company is aiming for 50% of senior leaders to have one or more
of these diverse characteristics by 2030 (20% 2021). At the end of 2022, the Company was 26.7%
diverse. This aim of 50% diversity of our senior leadership will ensure moving forward wé W|II have a more
diverse Board which will in turn ensure better decision making for our business.

The Group promotes diversity and inclusion through a number of employee networks for its workforce
which are sponsored by senior' management and provide environments for employee support, feedback
and comment, including LGBTQ+ Supporters; Women's; RACE; Disability and Carers; Working Parents;
Forces. Support; Young Professionals; Cancer Support;-and Mental Health Supporters. They help us build
cultural awareness and understanding of identity, and how different demographic groups face different
challenges.

Review of the business

The loss for the year before taxation amounted to £324m (2021: loss of £102m) and the loss after
taxation amounted to £258m (2021: loss of £79m). The het liabilities at the end of the year amounted to
£730m (2021: net liabilities of £472m). ) .

EDF Energy Customers Limited (the Company) is-a wholly-owned- subsidiary of EDF Energy Holdings
Limited (the "Group") which manages its operations on a business segment basis. For this reason, the
Company's Directors believe that further key performance indicators for the Company are not necessary
or appropriate for an understanding of the development, performance or position of the business. The
performance of the Customers Business Unit, which includes the Company, and future likely
developments of the business is discussed in the Groups Annual Report which does not form part of this
report.

The Customers Business is responsible for the supbly of gas and electricity and related services to
residential and business customers across Great Britain and the wholesale market optimisation of EDF
Energy’s generation and customer assets.

" The size of business customers ranges from large public sector contracts to small privately-owned
businesses. EDF Energy adopts different risk . management strategies for residential and business
customers.

EDF Energy is the UK Ieader in energy efficiency lnstallatlons through the Energy Company Obligation
Scheme (ECO).

EDF Energy remains committed to its Smart Meter installation programme and uograding the UK’s energy
infrastructure to enable concepts such as smart grids and time-of-use tariffs, which contribute to grid
resilience as the UK moves towards a low carbon future.
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’

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Residential

EDF Energy supplied 11.231TWh of electricity and 28.288TWh of gas for the residential segment in 2022.
As at 31 December 2022, EDF Energy had 3.244 million- electricity accounts and 2.266 million gas
accounts.. The 2022 churn at 3% showed a decrease compared to 2021 (at 17%), driven by the Energy
Crisis. EDF Energy's market share decreased from 10.5% in 2021 to 10.4% at the end of October 2022,

Given the current cost of living crisis is now being accompanied with a forecast economic downturn until
the end of 2024, there remains significant concern over the affordability of energy bills for customers.
Therefore, EDF Energy is highly engaged with the UK Government and Ofgem to review issues such as
supplier resilience, the future of the Default Tariff Cap methodology and Government support for
consumers. ' '

. Energy Crisis ‘ .
During 2021 gas and power wholesale prlces in the UK rose significantly, drlven by lower gas storage
levels following a cold winter, delays to the Nordstream Il gas pipeline certification, high gas demand in
Asia and an unplanned interconnector outage between UK-France. In 2021, EDF Energy was appointed
as SoLR for several failed suppliers and during 2022 .has successfully completed its industry
mutualization levy claim, with the highest initial claim acceptance rate of any energy suppller (>90%
claimed costs initially approved by Ofgem).

Throughout 2022 energy prices remained high for Winter 2022, due to restricted Russian gas supplies
into Europe, low Nuclear generation availability in France and lost LNG cargoes-as a result of several
processing plant outages The Government has therefore had to bring in a number of support schemes
for domestic and non-domestic consumers to address the affordability challenges presented by such
sustained high prices. These support schemes have shielded customers from some of the impact of the
ongoing Energy Crisis.

However, EDF Energy still faces significant risk to its hedging strategy due to uncertainties around
customer demand responses to the cost of living crisis, and the speed with which the market for Fixed
contracts re-opens. There is also volatility risk due to an unseasonably warm start to the Winter.and the
signifcantly lower Government support levels for business customers after 31 March 2023. Furthermore,
there is additional risk of bad debt due to customer affordablllty issues and increasing business customer
insolvency risk whilst energy costs remain high. EDF Energy is engaged very actively with the Regulator,
UK Government and other stakeholders in the discussions on the market regulations reform and how to
support customers through 2023 and beyond on the journey to Net Zero

Non-residential customers

In 2022, the non-residential- segment supplied a total of 32,43 TWh of electricity, of which 2.13TWh was
supplred to 241k small business customers (“SME") and 30.29TWh to 11.8k medium and 5.2k large
business customers (“EBS”). The business customer electricity market in the UK is 157.9TWh in total
making EDF Energy the largest suppller to business customers by volume

The industry has recovered from the Covid-19 demand reduction seen in 2020. ‘Whilst the’ UK
‘non-residential- electricity segment has seen an increase of 0.3TWh in the 6 months from 30 April 2021, a
volume increase of 1.7TWh YoY was seen for EDF Energy non-residential electricity segment in 2022.

In SME, managing the risks which have arisen from the pandemic has been the primary focus for much of -
2020 and 2021. Steps were taken to price-in additional risk, increase credit restrictions and limit winning
higher risk sectors in order to protect EDF Energy's position. Despite this, SME has developed its
channels as customer numbers grew 9% in electricity this year. ,



DocuSign Envelope ID: 627FE094-56AB-4766-8A66-137A058E6A93

'EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT (CON'TINUED)

Non-residential customers (continued) '
EDF Energy’s Medium Business segment have contlnued |ts focus on the number of meters, which has
mcreased by 45% since the start of the year.

In the Large  Business segment, the continuation of a targeted new-business approach has led to the
successful acquisitions of 14 new customers in 2022, with 2 exceeding 100GWh. Additionally, 23 Large
Business contracts have been renewed. .

-In the Public Sector, EDF Energy have supplied 177TWh over several large contracts including Crown
Commercial Servrces Network Rail and Scottish Procurement.

In the electricity purchase market, EDF Energy has grown its Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) business
and has become the largest renewable power offtaker (based on owned and 3rd party capacity)
according to. the latest industry market report. EDF has also successfully bid to become the offtaker of the .
Sofia Wind Farm, 6.5TWh of annual volume expected to become fully operational in 2026.

Pod Point .
Pod Point was successfully floated on the London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2021 raising £105
million of third-party financing to fund future growth in the UK electric vehicle market EDF has retalned a
54.05% stake in Pod Point foIIowmg the IPO. , .

In 2022, Pod Point installed 68,693 Plug-in-Vehicles .chargers. These sales were achieved amid supply .
~ chain issues and slowing growth in the EV market. '

Regulatory Environment

Energy Bill ReI:ef Scheme .

In September 2022, the Government introduced the Energy Bill Relief Scheme (EBRS) to support
businesses with their energy costs, in response to rlsmg energy prices. Under the EBRS, the government
is providing discounts on gas and electricity unit prices. The discount is calculated by comparing the
estimated wholesale portion of the unit price a customer would be paying during winter 2022/2023 with a .
baseline ‘government supported price’ which i is lower than currently expected wholesale prices this winter.
The scheme runs from the 1 October 2022 until 31 March 2023. The support is applied to quallfymg
customers’ bills automatically by energy suppliers who then recover the costs from government. :

Microbusiness Review
" Following two years of work, Ofgem completed its microbusiness review in 2022 The review culminated
"in a number of reforms to the market for microbusiness customers almed at |mpr0V|ng customer
protectlons These measures came into effect on 1st October 2022, :

Default Tariff Cap and Government Bill Support

Ofgem introduced a cap on: default tariffs for. residential customers on 1 January 2019. On 3 February
2022, Ofgem announced a 54% increase to the Default Tariff Cap, appllcable from April 2022 for the
following six months.
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Ofgem later announced that the level of the Price Cap for 1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022 would be
£3,549 for the average direct debit customer - an increase of 80% on the previous period, and that the
Default Tariff Cap would be updated. on a quarterly basis going forwards, rather than every six months.
However, some supplier costs were not recoverable through the Standard Variable Tariff (SVT)
calculation; in particular, it did not fully allow for the fuII recovery of energy costs relating to customers
SW|tch|ng to SVT in Winter 2021.

To support British houséholds, the Government introduced the Energy Bill Support Scheme (EBSS) under
which it is providing a £400 non-repayable rebate to households to help with their energy bills over the 6
months from October 2022 to March 2023.

On 8 September 2022, in addition to the EBSS, the British government announced the Energy Price
Guarantee (EPG), to take effect from 1 October 2022, to limit the amount an energy supplier can charge
per unit of energy used so that a typical dual-fuel household would pay up to circa £2,500 per year.
Households are expected to save around £900 over the winter period from 1 October 2022 to 31 March
2023. In the Government’'s Spring Budget on 15 March 2023, the Government announced that the Energy
Price Guarantee will be kept at £2,500 for an additional three months from 1 April to 30 June 2023.
Announced in the Autumn 2022 statement, the British government has decided tc extend the EPG from 1
April 2023 to 1 April 2024 although the typical household. energy bill will increase to £3,000 during this
period. Energy suppliers are fully compensated by the government for the savings provided to their
customers under the EPG.

Retail energy market resilience
In April 2022 Ofgem introduced a market stabilization charge (MSC) and a ban on acquisition- onIy tarlffs ,
until the end of March 2023. Following consultation, in February 2023 Ofgem announced that these
measures will be extended to March 2024. .

The MSC is a requirement on all domestic suppliers acquiring a domestic customer to pay a charge to the
losing supplier when wholesale prices fall below the relevant wholesale price cap index. The mechanism
is intended to help reduce the risk of costly supplier failures and attempts to provide protection to those
firms who hedge energy in advance for their customers so that they are not penalised should wholesale
energy prices fall sharply. The MSC was triggered for the first time in November 2022..

Ofgem also .took: steps to stréngthen its milestone assessment framework for new and growing market
entrants and increased the time period for assessment of new supply license applications. -

ECO4 and Warm Home Discount ‘
The third iteration of ECO scheme called ECO3 ended on 31 March 2022 and it was replaced in summer
" 2022 with the fourth iteration of the ECO scheme called ECO4. which will cover a four-year period until 31
of March 2026. Like ECQO3, the ECO4 scheme places an obligation on larger suppliers to promote energy
efficiency measures that help low income and vulnerable customers achieve notional bill savings.
Alongside this, there is an ongoing consultation between Ofgem and large energy suppliers to introduce a
parallel scheme called ECO+, due to launch in April 2023 and run until 31 March 2026. The ECO+
scheme is designed to widen the eligibility criteria for households to be able benefit from energy efficient
measures with the help from government grants when they do not meet the qualifying criteria to be able
to benefit from the ECO4 scheme. '
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The government also confirmed this year that the Warm Home Discount (WHD) scheme would be
extended for a further four years until :winter 2025/2026. The level of support given to qualifying
households under the scheme has been increased to £150 for eligible customers from winter 2022/2023.

Faster Switching '

In July 2022, Ofgem completed its Faster Switching regulatory project to make swﬂchmg suppliers faster
easier and .more cost-effective for customers. Since 18 July 2022, customers .now have the option of
switching during or after their 14 day cooling-off and once decided, the total switching process from the
old supplier to the new supplier should take place within five working days; whereas previously it could
take up to 21 working days.

Electricity Generator Levy

The UK Government also announced in the Autumn Statement its intention to mtroduce an Electr|C|ty
Generator Levy applicable to the revenues generated from renewable and nuclear sources. The
Electricity Generator Levy will apply at the tax rate of 45% to electricity generation revenues, which will be
determined by reference to revenue from sales exceeding a benchmark price of £75/MWh. The Electricity
Generator Levy once enacted will apply from 1 January 2023 to 31 March 2028.

Smart Metering Policy _ )
GB energy suppliers were required to take “all reasonable steps (ARS) to install smart meters for their

/ residential and small business customers before the end of December 2021.

’ Since January 2022, there has been a new obligation on all-suppliers to continue installing smart meters
for the period until the end of December 2025. For this period suppliers will need to achieve annual
minimum .installation targets. The government has consulted on the annual minimum installation targets
all suppliers will have to meet for the first two years: 2022 and 2023. These targets are challenging and
there are real risks that suppliers will fail to achieve them, given that smart meters remain optional for
customers. EDF Energy and other suppliers are working with government to develop future targets which
strike the balance of completing smart meter roll out in a way that maintains pace, the correct technical
standards and a positive customer experience.

EDF Energy remains committed to delivering smart meters to all residential and small business
customers who .want to. benefit from this new technology. In 2022, EDF Energy has installed a further
563k smart meters and at the end of 2022, 54% of EDF Energy customers in scope for the rollout have

' smart meters. This meant that EDF Energy has installed a total of 2.9 million smart meters to date,
despite several serious challenges, including a Covid-19 related pause of all smart meter installation
activity.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The following- is a discussion of the key risks facing the Company together with a summary of the
Company‘s approach to managing those risks.

Market risk '

Market risk is the risk that changes in energy prices will adversely affect the profitability of the Company
from normal business operations. The risk is managed on a Group-wide basis by EDF Energy Limited
which uses commodity hedge contracts to mitigate the price risk and through the deployment of
appropriate tarlff management. .
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Margln risk .
Margin price risk arises due to the uncertainty of future customer numbers and demand for gas and
electricity, the mablllty to perfectly hedge customer demand and the impact of wholesale markets on
competitor prices. Electricity and gas to service our customers is purchased either from our Generation -

_ assets or from the wholesale market, via.EDF Trading. Margin risk exposure is managed in accordance
with the Group's risk mandate, and is monitored through a well-defined governance process.

Investment risk

The future prospects of the Company are dependent on the performance of its mvestment in |ts
subsidiaries. The Company's investment in Pod Point Group Holdings Plc. has been reviewed and the
carrying value as at 31 December 2022 is considered to be recoverable. The Company monitors its
subsidiary to ensure its 'subsidiary manages its risk portfolio appropriately.

Liquidity risk '

- Liquidity risk is the risk that the proceeds from financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations
arising from liabilities. as they fall due. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk is reduced by its
borrowing facilities in place provided by its shareholders.

Credit risk

" The Company’s credit risk is primarily attrrbutable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of any expected credit losses estimated by the Group's management based on
forward looking collection information and their assessment of the current economic environment. The
.Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposuré spread over a large number of
customers. Management have put in place a.credit control function to monitor and chase the aged
receivables or take appropriate actions in case of failure to receive the amounts due. '

Reputation risk

EDF Energy ‘has based its brand on its customer commitments, its reputation and building trust.
-Inappropriate communication made to the public and/or to stakeholders, or. failure to maintain and
demonstrate appropriate standards may result in degradation of the brand and-could potentially damage
its reputation. Management has introduced key standards of conduct to provide guidance to all staff when
making decisions. A trust index is monitored along with continuous review of compliance programmes.

Health and safety risk

The health and safety of all our employees, contractors, agency staff and the public is a key risk given the
nature of the Group’s business. To minimise this risk, the Group is committed to .creating a culture that
views - safe working as the only way of working and to reviewing all our processes and procedures to
ensure they deliver this. Training is provided to managers to ensure they understand their responsibility
for the safety of the employees that they set to work. In addition there’is a confidential helpline for the use
of anyone within the organisation to help eradicate unsafe practices and safeguard our employees.

Cyber risk

Cyber security threats are increasing in- magnltude sophlstrcatlon and pace. The impact of a cyber - ‘

. security incident can significantly damage business-operations, profit and brand. The Group has invested
in technology to protect itself from such threats. The Company has policies, plans and controls in place to
respond to the operational impact of such a threat.
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Going concern

After making enquiries and reviewing cash flow forecasts and available facilities for at least the next 12
months. (including subsequent events), the Directors have formed. a judgement, at the time of approving
the financial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation that the Company has the ability to draw
on adequate resources to continue i ln operational existence for the foreseeable future. .

This judgement has been formed. taking into account the principal risks and uncertalntles that the
Company faces and which have been outlined in more detail in the Strategic Report, along with the
support provided by other group companies. EDF Energy Limited, the immediate parent company, has
also agreed to support the Company financially and not to recall amounts advanced to the Company if it
would impact on the ability of the Company to continue trading and meet other liabilities as they-fall due
for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the accounts. For this reason, the Directors .
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. o

04 July 2023
Approved by the Board ON “eilias and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by: :
ODBCI10B4ED0040B2s e+ s e nvnvassssnrasnsons . B

Ph|||ppe Commaret

Director

04 3uly 2023 : .
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DIRECTORS' REPORT |

The Directors présent their annual report and the financial statements for‘the' year. ended 31 December
2022. : ’

Principal risks, principal actlvmes uncertainties and gomg concern are discussed within the- Strategic
Report.

Directors
The Directors who heId office during the year and to the date of this report were as foIIows
James Poole
" Richard Hughes
- Dawn Fortune
Philippe Commaret
Julie Ann Meanwell
Neville Towers
Simon Todd (resigned 14 April 2023)
"~ Matthew Nunn (appointed 1 March 2022)
The following director was appointed after. the year end:
Kaa Stuart Holmes (appointed 1 January 2023)

There are no contracts during or at the end of the financial year in which a Director of the Company has a
material interest. None of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any interests in
the shares of the Company or any Group compahy that are required to be disclosed in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006. :

Corporate Governance Statement

Introduction '

The Company is not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code but seeks to apply best
practices from the Code using the Wates Principles for Large Private Companies (the Wates Principles).
This approach allows the Company to maintain robust corporate governance arrangements whilst
continuing to support the corporate governance practices of its parent company, EDF SA Group (a listed -
company on the Euronext Paris), with its compliance obligations under the French Afep-Medef Code.

The Company purpose and strategy is set out in the Strategic Report and published on the. EDF Energy
(EDF UK) website. The purpose is summarised as helping Britain to achieve Net Zero. The purpose and
strategy are guided by: i) feedback from stakeholder engagement; ii) consideration of the long-term
impact of strategic decisions on the long-term objectives of the Company and the wider EDF UK Group,
bhelng EDF Energy Holdlngs Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group); and iii) the environmental impact of
those decisions. :

The purpose is a UK articulation of the EDF SA Group Raison d'étre. It underpins strategy setting and .
decision making by the Board and ensures activity within the Company is compatible with achieving these
objectives in order to promote long term success.

To ensure strong corporate governance practices are m‘alntalned the Group acts ‘in ‘accordance with
multiple overarching internal policies that are tested on an annual basis to satisfy the French Securities
Markets Authority (Autorité des Marchés) Listing Requirements.

This statement will explain what arrangements the Company had in place during 2022 to maintain its
strong corporate governance culture and support delivery of the purpose and strategy, which, for ease of
review, have been aligned with the Wates Prmmples to ensure con3|stency with the prmclples of formal
codes of governance.
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The Company operates an effective board that has developed and promoted the purpose of a
company, and ensured the Company values, strategy and culture align with that purpose.

EDF UK is proud to be Britain’s biggest generator of zero carbon electricity' and in order to help Britain
.achieve Net Zero EDF intends to lead the transition to a decarbonised energy system across its seven
business areas. Having acquired Pod Point in 2020, one of the largest electric vehicle charging providers
and then successfully partnering with Drive Electric in 2021, EDF continues to grow a responsible

- business to help Britain achieve net zero. With the UK Government vowing to phase-out the sale of new
petrol and diesel cars by 2030, taking these decisions was an important step forward for EDF UK in its -
support of Britain in achieving its Net Zero goals. This followed the acquisition by the renewables- arm of
the business of UK battery storage developer Pivot Power in late 2019 which is helping the Group to
develop battery storage and is creating business opportunities and economic activity. Furthermore, in
2022, EDF invested in heat pump installer CB Heating, to help offer customers an end-to-end heat pump
installation service through CB Heating’s Heat Pump Installers Network Academy, which aims to train 500+
installers by 2023.

The Company works with the UK’s biggest public sector procurement agencies td cut the cost and
workload involved in purchasing electricity for over 1,100 public sector organisations (including charities
and NGOs, central and local government, universities and the NHS) with over 90,000 suppliers. Its
strong, collaborative relationships with each publi¢ sector framework operator helps the Company to meet

- its complex requirements and to put the needs of its customers first. By continuously investing in and
enabling access to zero carbon energy and technology, we're here to support Britain's businesses and
public sector on their journey to achieve Net Zero.

These activities are not only in themselves a significant step towards helping Britain achieve Net Zero but
are also illustrative of EDF’s sustainable business roadmap underpinning activity within the Company.

Following the launch of ‘Simply Better for Customers’, which strives to provide the best service for its .
customers and puts customers at the heart of everything it does is in line with the Company’s values, EDF
was awarded the Uswitch ‘Large Supplier of the Year award in 2021, receiving a customer satisfaction
score of 74% - the highest score of all the ‘big six’ suppliers. The Customers Business also acquired
customer accounts from Utility Point, Green Network and Zog Energy after the suppliers fell into
administration and EDF were thus appointed Supplier of Last Resort (SoLR) during the ongoing. Crisis, a
process which the Board has had oversight of. In 2022 the Company maintained industry leading

. customer service with a ‘Great’ rating on Trustpilot, as well as being ranked 1st out of 20 energy suppliers
by Citizen’s Advice. Being awarded this rating has provided further motivation to contlnuously provide the
best support the Company can for its customers, especially during the Crisis.

To ensure the strategy, objéctive and purpose of the Company is articulated and implemented throughout
the organisation, the Group has a communications team that provides support to the Group with issuing

- tailored- communications to employees. Public and political opinion with regard to EDF UK is monitored
and the team frequently engages with political parties and other stakeholders. The social media team also
has an active listening, response and monitoring strategy to gauge market perception of delivery of the
strategy and to feedback on ways to improve how the Company engages with the media and other
relevant stakeholders

' UK Fuel Mix disclosure’ information, publlshed by Government Department BEIS, recogmses electricity from wind, solar and
nuclear fuel produces zero carbon dxomde -emissions at the point of generation.
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The Company has an effective board oomposition, with an effective Chair and a balance of skills,
. backgrounds, experience and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capacity to make a
_valuable contribution. The size of the board is appropriate to the scale and complexity of the Company.

The purpose of the Board is to ‘provide vision ‘and leadership to the Company's management and to

- oversee managements performance by having oversight over safety and operational performance; key
technical issues; risks; HR, financial and commercial matters. The overriding objective of the Board is to
act as a governance forum with oversight of the Company’s operations within the Customers business
unit. To assist with these responsibilities the Board utilises committees and internal governance bodles
established within the Group to consider matters in detail. These current committees include:

1. EDF UK Executive Team;
2. Customers Margin Commrttee and
3. EDF UK Risk Management Committee.

In addition, the Board utilises the following standmg sub-committees adopted by the main governance
board of the Group, being EDF Energy Holdings Limited, and which are governed by supporting Terms of
Reference:

1. EDF UK Company Health and Safety Committee;
2. EDF UK Audit Committee; and
3. EDF UK Remuneratlon Committee.

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the size and structure of the board, to
ensure it possess the knowledge and expertise to meet the Company’s strategic needs. The Board is
comprised of the Managing Director of Customers and members of the Customers Business. Unit
Executive Team (the Customers ET) with expertise in Finance, HR, Sales & Marketing and Customer
Operations.

In addition to possessing wide-ranging expertise, there has been a considered éffort to establish a
diverse Board, including a balance of gender, ethnicity and social backgrounds. All changes to the Board
composition,: partrcularly appointments, are approved in accordance with the ‘Politique Gouvernance des.
filiales’ policy mandated by EDF SA for the worldwide EDF SA Group before being approved by the
Company.
On appointment, directors are prowded with the EDF UK Directors Training and Induction Manual which
outlines their obligations as a Director, how to comply with them, and how to operate within EDF UK's
corporate governance framework. Directors are also offered face-to-face bespoke training should they
need additional support in their new role and are encouraged to update their skills, knowledge and
familiarity with the Group by meeting with senior management, visiting sites (such as the power stations
. and call centres) and by attending appropriate external seminars and training courses.

To ensure that potential conflicts of interest of Directors are identified and duly authorised, newly
appointed Directors are required to complete a Conflicts of Interest Questionnaire and sign a declaration
to this effect. This information is collected by the Company Secretary. Directors are aware that new
conflicts arising thereafter must be declared and authorised in advance by the board of directors or by the
shareholders In 2022, there was only one new apporntment to the Board.

The Board and individual directors have a clear understanding of their accountablllty and respon5|bllltres
The Company’s policies and procedures support effective decision-making and independent challenge.
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The Company’s constitutional documents set out the authority, role and conduct of Directors. Day-to-day
management and the implementation of strategies agreed by the Board are delegated to the relevant
director(s) or Customers ET members in attendance. The reporting structure below Board level is
designed-to ensure that decisions are made by the most approprlate person(s). Management teams
report to members of the Customers ET. .

. The Directors receive regular updates on all aspects.of the Customers business endorsed by the relevant
Customers ET member ahead of each Board meeting and are confident in the integrity of the information
used for decision-making. This is dictated by the Company's internal procedures in relation to financial
reporting, key performance - indicators (KPIs), workforce data, environmental data, stakeholder
engagement feedback and consumer data.. o : .

The Company and wider Group uses Financial Authority Limits (FALs) (as detailed in the Group
Corporate Governance Policy) and contract signatory authority mechanisms to control and provide
oversight over the various financial commitments it enters into.

The Group Corporate Governance Pollcy underpins the Company policy framework that sets out:

. 1.Requirements for governance bodies;
2.their composition and Board member training;
3.Financial Authority Limit (FALs);
4.The Policy Operating Framework; and ’
5:Requirements for processes to facilitate the discharge of board duties as well as to provide evidence of
decision-making and stakeholders considered as part of that decision-making.

The Group Audit Charter provides internal authority to independently assess the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes by the Company and wider Group. The findings of any
such review are reported to the Audit Committee of the EDF Energy Holdlngs Limited Board and
presented to the Company to discuss. .

The Board promotes long-term sustainable success of the Company by identifying opportunities to create’
and preserve value and estabhshlng oversight for the identification and mitigation of risk.

- . The Company has a stringent risk management culture through policies, reporting and |nternal audit and
assurance enabling directors to make robust decisions concerning principai risks to the Group. The Group
has developed a Risk Management, Internal Control, Business Continuity Policy, which defines key
standards the companies within the Group are required to achieve. The Company self-assesses against
these standards, and the Group is audited against them to provide assurance that Group companies have
an appropriate risk culture. The directors agree how these. principal risks should be managed or mitigated
to reduce the likelihood of their incidence or magnitude of their impact. These risks are set out in the
“Principal risks and uncertainties™ section of the Strategic Report.
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Specifically, in 2022, the Board met on several occasions to discuss various risk areas of the business to
ensure they can be regularly monitored and updated. For example, there are regular Health and Safety
Management System Board Meetings, in which key health and safety achievements, KPls and
benchmarking levels are openly discussed. This is an opportunity for the' Board to be presented with key
statistics. in this area and assess the positives as well as being ‘a welcome forum to discuss
improvements. Further to this, there is a Customers Enterprise Risk Review in which oversight is provided
by the. Customer ET through scrutiny of a comprehensive set of KPIS and management practices to
monitor the level of threat each risk poses. This therefore highlights areas in which the Company needs to
actively mitigate against risk to improve the long-term success of the Company. Such discussions include
looking at Company competitiveness in the market, new regulatory changes and general market risks.
Through having these conversations, the Board of Directors is able to ensure risk is mitigated against,
"whilst recognising the value already ongoing across the business, in order to successfully support and
promote the long-term ambitions of the Company .

More genierally, the Company believes all harm is preventable and thus has an ambition to strive for zero
~harm at the workplace. This means ensuring workplaces are safe and healthy for everyone; both
employees and anyone working on the Company s behalf.

Control testing agalnst each Group policy is carried out at least annually through' the Internal Control
Self-Assessment process. Improvement actions are identified following completion of the results, where
required, to facilitate continuous improvement. Results are then reported to the EDF Group Risk
department to support EDF SA’s compliance with the French Afep- Medef Code.

The Board promotes executive remuneration structures aligned to the long-term sustainable success of a
company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the Company. .

The Group's executive remuneration structures and policies are set and implemented within the wider

. framework of EDF Group policies for Senior Leaders and operate under the supervision and governance
of the EDF UK Remuneration Committee (as referenced above) of EDF Energy Holdings Limited.
Although the purpose of the EDF UK Remuneration Committee is to provide a forum for considering the
level and composition of the remuneration of the EDF Energy Holdings Board and Executive Team, its
responsibilities are wide and go beyond the scope . of just this. One of its responsibilities is to make
recommendations about the overall remuneration policy of the Group having due regard to the practices

~adopted by comparator UK companies and the need to attract, retain and motivate employees of the
experience and calibre required,.including detailed elements of the remuneration packages, pension
arrangements and service contracts for the above group.

The Group operates both short-term and long-term incentives arrangements for their' Senior Leaders, with '
targets which align to and reinforce the requirement for the long-term sustainability and performance of
the business. These incentives represent a significant part of the remuneration package of the Senior
Leaders.
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The individual performance of Senior Leaders across the Group, and determination of their annual pay
awards, is balanced with affordability based on the Company’'s economic and financial position, including
that of the wider Group. When determining the pay approach for the Senior Leaders, as well as setting
the rules of the annual incentive arrangements, the EDF UK Remuneration. Committee ensures that the
principles used are consistent with the approach applied to the rest of the workforce (for instance regular
benchmarking against the market, through Competition Act 1998 compliant processes).

The Company is committed to building a sustainable future for all employees. Honouring this commitment
means fostering a work environment where everyone is rewarded fairly for the work they do and the

- contributions they make to the Company's success. The Group is also an active equal opportunities
employer and promotes ar .environment free from discrimination, harassment and victimisation, where
everyone receives equal treatment and career development regardless of age, gender, nationality, ethnic
origin, religion, marital status, sexual orientation or disability. All decisions relating to employment
practices (including remuneration) are objective, free from bias and based solely upon work criteria and
individual merit. The Company publishes its annual Gender Pay Report on its wébsite. -

Diréctors foster effective stakeholder relationships aligned to the Company's purpose. The Board is '
responsible for overseeing meaningful engagement with stakeholders, including the workforce, and
having regard to their views when taking decisions. .

The Company's key stakeholders and the ways in WhICh it engages with them, are set outin the Strateglc
Report .

The Group s key stakeholders, and the ways in ‘which the respectlve compames engage with them, are
set out in the Strategic Report of each set of Annual Accounts.- :

Good governance and effective communication are essential ‘to deliver-the purpose, the Raison d'étre of
'EDF SA, and to protect EDF UK's reputation and relationships with all stakeholders including
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, regulators and local communities. The Company purpose
was developed with input from both employees and customers to ensure its relevance for stakeholders
and secure their buy-in. By maintaining dialogue with stakeholders, the Board ensures that it takes
decisions aligned with the Company purpose to support long term success.

In May 2022, the Company won Best Contract Delivery at the 2022 national GO Excellence in Public
Procurement Awards for its collaborative onboarding project with Crown Commercial Service (CCS). The
Company was awarded an agreement with CCS in April 2020 that doubled the number, of its energy
.supplies to over 53,000. Over the course of 12 months, during unprecedented world events; the Company.
worked in partnership with CCS to create a smooth-transfer and onboarding for these customers.

The Board is committed to social responsibility, community engagement and environmental sustainability
which is demonstrated, in particular, through the sustainable business roadmap which showcases our
commitment to being a responsible business and our engagement ‘with internal and external
stakeholders.

The Group engages, informs and consults with its employees on matters affectlng them and has regard to
- their interests in decision making. Employees who possess a diverse range of talents and perspectives, .
. that feel engaged in their roles, are fundamental to the long-term success of the Company. As such, in
2021, the Company started monitoring the diversity of senior leadership in terms of Gender, Ethnicity,
Sexual Orientation and Disability. The Company is aiming for 50% of senior leaders to have one or more
of these diverse characteristics by 2030 (20% 2021). At the end of 2022, the Company’'s senior leaders
were 26.7% diverse. ’ ' : '
Examples of employee engagement mechanlsms mclude
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» Formal and informal brlefmgs departmental meetrngs and regular reports in staff newsletters and on the

‘Group intranet.

« Trade union and personal contract holder structures - Company Council, European Works Council,

Corporate Social Responsibility Forum, strategy meetings, and business unit specific forums.

+ Employee networks sponsored by senior'management to provide equitable, diverse and inclusive

environments for employee support, feedback and comment. They help build cultural awareness and

understanding of identity, and how different demographic groups face different challenges. During 2022,

Employee networks attended various focus groups on. policy changes and were actively involved,

alongside Trade Union’s, in providing feedback and ideas to help shape people policies.

+ Diversity and Inclusion Strategy Group (DISG) chaired by the CEO reviews Group strategy and actions

taken to promote Diversity and Inclusion (D&I). It discusses items raised via the employee networks to

guide Company policy development.

» Regular employee surveys where senior Ieaders gather feedback-on employee wellbeing which inform
v policy, for example the EDF Group Employee Engagement Survey dlscussed further below see
' ‘Stakeholder concerns identified’.

EDF UK continues .to promote its Everyones Welcome vison for being a great place to work where
everyone is welcome as well as the Standards of Behaviour statement created in September 2021. The

statement outlines the Company’s expectation that all EDF UK employees have access to a respectful - .

working environment and that behaviour which is not in line with the Everyone’s Welcome vision will not
be tolerated.

The Company and employees have faced serious challenges during 2022 due to the cost of living crisis.
Through constructive negotiations with our Trade Unions, the Company were able to offer additional
support through bringing forward part of pay deals and one-off.payments, along with online resources for
employees to access. The Board has maintained that the mental health and wellbeing of employees,
particularly those in customer facing roles, should remain a top priority for management.

The Company and wider Group proactively engages with relevant external stakeholders (such as_the
Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy, Ofgem, Citizens Advice, etc) to provide updates
and discuss issues in the energy market. Directors and other attendees share feedback from these
external discussions with internal stakeholders to support decision making and facilitate transparency.

The Customers business unit and its respective teams’ therein, are responsible for engagement with
relevant stakeholders affecting the Customers business, ensuring that the information shared with them
represents a fair, balanced, and understandable assessment of the Company’'s position and prospects.
These teams also evaluate any feedback from stakeholders and escalate information (where relevant) to
the Board for consideration in order to aideiits principal decision making. For example, the Company uses
customer insight from both specific research exercises and more general customer feedback, such as
" complaints data, to inform decision making. In addition to this, the Board engage regularly with different
business units for Board meetings, inviting different stakeholders to discuss key risks and topics in their
area. Through-out 2022, this has included engaging with the Health and Safety team, the Smart Metering
team and the Enterprise Risk, Fraud &amp; Financial Crime team. Having their opinions presented at
Board level ensures that. effective demsrons can be made as a result of such, taking into account these -
various teams’ fndlngs -

The Company is an active member of the industry trade body Energy UK, with internal stakeholders
attending monthly Retail Customer's Committee Meetings. Through our engagement in this forum we
collaborate with other suppliers and industry participants to progress various consumer, regulatory and
policy matters alongside -discussing regulatory and policy issues to provide direction to Energy UK when
engaging external stakeholders.:
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The Company, in addition to other companies- within the Group that meet the applicable threshold,
publishes its Modern Slavery Act Statement, Gender Pay Gap Report and Payment Practices Report in
accordance with UK law and regulation. Each of these is published externally and gives consideration to
-EDF UK's relationships with its suppliers, particularly the Modern Slavery and Payment Practice and
Reporting Statements. The Board welcomes this transparency and uses these reports to help EDF UK
continue to improve its performance in these areas.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Information on the streamlined energy and carbon reporting is discussed in the Group's Annual Report
which does not form part of this report and are available to the public as set out in note 25.

Dividends
-The Directors have paid no dividend in the current year (2021: £nil).

Political contributions
The Company made no political contributions in the current year or prior year.

Future developments.

The future developments of the Company are outlined in the Prmcnpal activity section of the Strateglc'
Report.

Eq ual opportunities

The Company is fully committed to ensuring that all current and potentlal future employees and
customers are treated fairly and equally, regardless of their gender, sexual orientation, marital status,
disability, race, colour, nationality or ethnic origin. The Company provides equal. opportunities for
employment, training and development, having regard to particular aptitudes and abilities. In the event of
employees becoming disabled during employment, where possible, assistance and retraining is given so
that they may attain positions compatible with their ability. ‘Please see 'Stakeholder Engagement
Statement' section on page 1.

Employee involvement :

The Company places considerable value on the |nvolvement of its employees and has continued to keep

them informed on matters affecting their employment and on the various factors affecting the performance

of the Company and Group. This is carried out in @ number of ways, including formal and informal
- briefings, departmental meetings and regular reports in staff newsletters and on the Group intranet.

Directors' liabilities 7

The Company has made qualifying thlrd party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Dlrectors Wthh :
were made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that
information. The Directors confirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which -
they know the auditor is unaware.

This confirmation is glven and should be mterpreted in accordance W|th the prOV|S|on of s.418 of the
Companies Act 2006.
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EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 -

_DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTIlNUED) '

Reappomtment of auditor :

Deloitte LLP are auditors for the flnanmal year ended 31 December 2022 and will be replaced by PwC
LLP as the auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 31 December 2023 in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The Dlrectors have been authorlzed to fix the remuneration of
the audltors .

Approved by the Board on .04 July 2023 énd signed on its behaif by:

Docusigned by:
0DBC10846D00409...

Philippe Commaret
- Director
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‘ EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and audited financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations. .

Company: law. requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements-in accordance with- United Kingdom
Generally Accepted- Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law),
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law the .
Directors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them conéistently;
+ make judgements and accounting estimates that aré reasonable and prudent;

« 'state whether applicable UK Accountmg Standards has been followed, ~ subject to any material
- departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is |nappropr|ate to presume that
the company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffi C|ent to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion ' .
In our opinion the financial statements of EDF Energy Customers Limited (the ‘Company'):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 ‘and of its loss
for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with Financial Reportlng Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) as adopted by the European Union [and FRS 101 as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)]; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprisé:
+ the income statement; '

+ the statement of comprehénsive income;
+ the balance sheet;

« the statement of changes in equity;

« the statement of accounting policies; and

+ the related notes 1 to 25.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure as issued by the IASB. .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs  (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit 6f the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC's’)
Ethieal Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is. suffcnent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where

- the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or ’

+ the directors have not disclosed in the f'nanmal statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

‘In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the dlrectors use of the going concern ba5|s
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the companys abitity to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting |ncIuded '
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EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

«  We have reviewed a signed letter of financial support from EDF Energy Limited to assist in meeting
the liabilities as and when they fall due which include the EDF Energy Customers Limited. The letter of
support was signed on 6th September 2022 and the support will be avaﬂable for at least 12 months
from the date of signing the financial statements.

+ We performed an impairment review of the fixed assets held in the Customers CGU. The fixed assets
held by this CGU relate primarily to billing systems (software) Wthh are capitalised as intangible
assets.

As part of our work performed, we evaluated whether Managements model producmg the valuation
had a sufficient risk element incorporated into it. Additionally, we designed and applied sensitivity
analyses to model possible downside- scenarios in respect of the key assumption, being a 1%

- long-term EBIT margin.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to

events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to

continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the fnanC|aI statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the dlrectors with respect to gomg concern are descrlbed in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other mformatlon

The other information comprlses the information included in the annual report other than the f'nanmalv )

statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information

contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
~ of assurance conclusion thereon. :

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consuder whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in- the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other |nformat|on we are required to report that fact

We have nothmg to report in this regard.

Respon5|b|I|t|es of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors -determine is necessary to enable the preparation of f nancial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic aiternative but to do so. .
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. EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
(CONTINUED) -

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further descrlptlon of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures.in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, -
including fraud is detalled below. .

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the
company’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and
regulations.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and

identified the key laws and regulations that: '

+ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. These included UK Companies Act, pensions legislation, tax legislation; and

« do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental
to the company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team, including relevant internal specialists such as tax, IT,

pensions and Financial instrument specialist regarding the opportunities- and-incentives that may exist

within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to
respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override
of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the
business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

« reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the
financial statements;

- - performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

+ enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and
claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

+ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
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EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT T.0 THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
~ (CONTINUED)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

‘Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategrc report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appllcable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understandlng of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not |dent|f ed any material misstatements in the strategic report or the
d|rectors report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception :
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requrred to report in respect of the following matters if, in our
opinion:
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

-+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting rec_ords and returns; or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might-state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anydne other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.: . .

- Anthony Matthews FCA
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP :
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
4iJuly2023
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INCOME STATEMENT -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Revenue )
Energy and related purchases

Gross margin

Materials and contractor costs

Personnel expenses

_ Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating (Ioss)lproflt before depreciation and
amortisation

Deprematlon and amortlsatlon

Operating loss after depreciation and amortisation
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipmeht
Restructuring'Coéts

‘Loss before taxation and net finance costs
" Investment.income - :
Flnance‘costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation -

Loss for the year

, EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED . -
"~ ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note

10
11

12

"YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2021

2022 ,
“E£'m £m
12,580 7,927
(12,075) . (7,147)
505 780
(79) (62)
(171) (185)
(634) (618)
139 . 90
(240) 5
87) (83)
(327) (78)
- (M
C- (25)
- (327) ~ (104)
4 3
(1) (1
(324) (102)
66 - 23
(258) (79)

There were no recognised gains or Iosses during the current or prior year other than the Iosses shown

above. Accordlngly, no separate statement of. comprehenswe income has been presented.

The above results were derived from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year.
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- . EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
. . ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
, S : YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

o 2022 2021
) Note £m i - £m
_ Non-current assets . : ' : : ) _'
Intangible assets - - 13 ' 140 192
Property, plant and equipment ) ' _ 14 16 15
Investment in subsidiary undertakings ' 15 : - 98 - 98
Right of use assets : . _ v , 1 2
Financial assets _ : 16 : 13 1
Investment in associates . 15 - 52 - B2
Deferred tax assets . : ' - 22 17. 14
Lo 3 _ ' : 337 384
.. Current assets ' : , . | . v
Financial assets ' » .16 ' 22 4
~ Trade and other receivables o 17 2,837 - 1,712 -
Cash and cash equivalents 18 o 286 : -
Current tax asset . . ‘ - 76 125
: : ' ' ‘ 3,229 . | 1,841
Total assets . R - _ - : ' 3 _ 3,558 2,225 -
Current liabilities | _
Other liabilities. - A ' 19 : ©(4,219) " (2,571)
Borrowings 20 - . - (13)
Ptovisions . ‘ 21 - " (68) (111)
" Lease liability . o - : v . . (1) .. (1) -
' “ , ' (4,288) (2,696)
Net current liabilities o ' : (1,067) (856)
Total assets less current liabilities . ' ‘ (730) (472)
Non-current liabilities v _ . :
Lease liability - : L - (1)
Total liabilities R ‘ DU (4,288 (2,697) -
Netliabilites -~ L (730) (472)
Capital and reserves . .
Called up share capital : . ‘ .23 : 100 : 100
Retained earnings 4 . : (830) (572)
Shareholders' funds o ‘ - . - ~ (730) ' (472)
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~

EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

LN

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

._The financial statements of EDF Energy Customérs‘Limited (registered number 02228297) on pages 27 '
to-55 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on .04 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by: B :
—
o
T ODBC10BABD0AT s « 4 v sinreanraannns e
Philippe Commaret

" Director
.04 July 2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: 627FE094-56AB-4766-8A66-197A058E6AQ3

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

At 1 January 2021
- Loss for the year .

-At 31 December 2021
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2022

EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Retained

Called up o
share capital earnings . Total
’ £m £m £m
100 (493) (393)

' - (79) (79)

. 100 (572) (472)

- (258) (258)

100 (830) (730)
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‘ ' EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘1 General information

The Company is mcorporated in the Unlted Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 and is reglstered in
England and Wales. The address of the Company's registered office is shown on the contents page. The
nature of the Companys operatlons “and its principal activities are set out in the strategic report on. pages

1to12. -

Basis of preparatlon

The Company meets the definition of a quallfylng entity -under Financial Reporting Standard 101 (FRS"
101) “Reduced Disclosure Framework". These financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Flnancral Reporting Standard 101 (FRS 101) Reduced Disclosure Framework

2 Accounting p_olicies _
. Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The principal accounting policies -applied in the preparation of these financial statements. are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years. presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared an the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally

. based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the asset. The financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling as that.is the: currency for the primary economic enwronment in which the
company operates.

Summary of disclosure exemptions
The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosute exemptions under FRS 101

the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement; :
the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentatlon of Financial Statements' to present comparative
informationtin respect of paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1
d) the requirements of paragraphs 10( 10(f) and 134- 136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements; .
e) the reqmrements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
2 the requirements of paragraphs-30-and 31 of IAS 8 Accountlng PoI|CIes Changes in Accountlng
stimates and Errors; _
ﬁ; the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

. the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactlons entered
into between two or more members of a group, provided that .any subsndlary which is a party to the:
transaction is wholly owned by such a member;

i) the requirements of paragraphs 130(f)(n) 130(f)(iii), 134(d)-134(f) and 135(c) 135(e) of IAS 36

’ Impalrment of Assets; .

the requrrements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118,

19(a 119(c), 120-127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
k) the requirements of paragraph 52, the second sentence of paragraph 89, and paragraphs 90, 91 and
93 of IFRS 16 Leases; and

) the re(turements of para raPh 58 of IFRS 16, provided that the disclosure of details of indebtedness -
re uired gara graph 61 1% Schedule 1 to the Regulations is presented separately for lease liabilities

: and other liabilities, and in total

b$ The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Dlsclosures

‘Where relevant equlvalent dlsclosures have been given in the group accounts which are available to the -
~ public as set out in note 25.

31



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 627FE094-56AB-4766-8A66-197A058E6A93

EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 -

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

.Going concern

After making enquiries and rewewrng cash flow forecasts and-available facilities for at least the next 12
months (including subsequent events), the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving
the financial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation that the Company has the ability to draw
on adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

. This judgement has been formed taking into account the pnncrpal risks and uncertainties that the
Company faces and which have been outlined in more detail in the Strategic Report, along with the

- support provided by other group companies. EDF Energy Limited, the intermediate parent company, has
also agreed to support the Company financially and not to recall amounts advanced to the Company if it -
would impact on the ability of the Company to continue trading and meet other liabilities as they fall due -
for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the accounts. For this reason, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern basis’in preparing the financial statements.

Exemptlon from preparing group accounts

The financial statements contain information about EDF Energy Customers Limited as:an lndlwdual
company and do not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group. The company is
exempt under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requifement to prepare consolidated
financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertakings aré included by full consolidation in the
consolidated financial statements of EDF Energy Holdrngs Limited, a company mcorporated in United
Kingdom. o

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods and services to the customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Revenue is recognised: either when the performance obligation in the contract has
been performed oras control of the performance obligation is passed to the customer.

Energy supply: Revenue is recognlsed on the basis of electr|0|ty.and gas supplied during the year and is
attributable to the supply of electricity and gas and meter reading and related services. This includes an
estimate of the sales value of units and terms supplied to customers between the date of the last meter
reading and the year end, and the invoice value of other-goods sold and services provided. Any unbilied
revenue is included in trade receivables, net of provision for expected credit losses, to the extent that is
considered recoverable

During the year the UK Government announced three new support schemes to provide support for
customers during the cost-of-living -crisis as follows: Energy Bill Support Scheme (EBSS), Energy Price
Guarantee (EPG) scheme and Energy Bill Relief Scheme (EBRS). The Group has determined that it is
appropriate to apply the requirements of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ where the -
Government is effectively settling a portion of customers’ energy bills. This is on the basis that the Group
remains entitled to receive consideration for the supply of electricity and gas based on either the existing
price cap structure or customers’ fixed or variable priced contracts and the transaction price is -
unchanged. The trade receivable arising from the supply of energy is settled both by the customer, and
the Government. The Group observes that the alternative application of IAS 20 ‘Government Grants’
would have resulted in a similar accounting outcome.
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EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
i ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
v ' YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue comprises-the value of work completed goods supplied and services rendered during the year,
net of value added tax.

Government grants

Government grants are recognlsed in the income statement on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred are recognised in the income statement in the period'in which they become recelvable

- Interest income

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (usirtg the effective interest method that is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument)
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. .

Finance cost

Finance costs of debt are recognised in the income statement over the term of such instruments, at a
constant rate on the carrying amount.

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, is provided at amounts expected to be pald (or recovered)
-using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. The tax currently payable -
is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement -because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided or recognised in full using the balance sheet liability method, providing for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reportlng
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax arising from (1) the initial recognition of goodwill, (2) the initial recognition of assets or

liabilities in a transaction (other than in a business combination) that affects neither the taxable profit nor

the accounting profit, or (3) differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will

probably not reverse in the foreseeable future, is not provided for. _

- Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is more likely than not that future taxable profits will be
available against which, the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount. of deferred tax
assets is reviewed-at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply for the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantlvely
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in ‘the income statement, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current tax and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity res'pectively.
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. EDF ENERGY CUSTOMERS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES TO THE F_INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 Accounting policies (continued) . ' .
'In'tangible assets

IT software

IT software is initially recognised at cost and is amortised on a straight-line basis over a useful economic

life of 3-8 years. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the income statement.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when

no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal: Any gain or'loss arising upon

de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the -
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement.

Licences

Licences are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently amortised on a stralght line basis over a
useful economlc life of 9 years.

Customers contracts

The incremental costs of obtaining a customer contract is capitalised if the company expects to recover
those costs. The capitalised cost is'subsequently amortised on straight line basis over a useful economic
life of 2 - 4 years. .

Other intangible assets under construction

Other Intangible assets under construction are recognised as the total of cost of purchase, development
and installation of intangible assets to bring them into use. For the assets to be brought into use, they are -
transferred to the relevant intangible asset classes where they are amortised per the policy of the
intangible asset classes. No amortisation is recognised prior to-these transfers.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes dlrectly attrlbutable incremental costs |ncurred in thelr
acquisition and installation.
Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis, less any residual vaIue over the estlmated useful life of
the asset and charged to the income statement as follows:

Asset class . _ Depreciation method and rate
Information technology . Three to ten years

Tools and equipment : ] Five years

Meters _ . : Four to twenty years

Fixtures and equipment ) Four to five years

Motor vehicles ’ A ) ' : Five years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) |

2 Accounting policies (continued)

. Assets under construction

Assets under construction are recognlsed as the total of cost of purchase, constructlon and installation of
tangible assets to bring them into use. For the assets to be bought into use, they are transferred to
relevant tangible asset classes where they are depreciated as per the policy of that tangibles asset class.
No depreciation is recognised prior to these transfers

Investment in subsrdlarles

Subsidiary undertakings are those entities controlled by the company, and where the substance of the
- relationship between the company.and the entity indicates that the entity is controlled by the company.

The Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Considerations in the assessment of control include:
- the purpose and design of the entity;
- what the relevant activities are and how decisions about those activities are made;
- whether the rights of the company give it the current ability to direct-the relevant activities; .
. - whether the company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its mvolvement with the entlty,
and
- whether the entity has the ability to usé its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's
returns.

The company contlnues ‘to assess whether it controls an entrty if facts and circumstances indicate that
there changes to the elements of control.

Investment in subsidiaries is recorded at cost and s subsequently assessed for indicators of‘lmpalrment

_If such factors exist, a detailed impairment test is carried out. Impairment is recognised in the income
statement when the recoverable amount of the companys investment is Iower than the carrying amount
of the investment.

Upon disposal of the investment in the entity, the company measures the investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the fair value of the company’s investment and the proceeds of disposal is recognlsed
in the income statement. .

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company is in a position to exercise srgnlfcant influence, but not
control or jointly control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee. Significant influence is the power fo participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee but'is not control over those policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for at-cost less, where appropriate, aIIowances for impairment. If

there is an indication of impairment the Company calculates the amount of impairment and the difference

between the recoverable amount of the associate and.its carrying value is then recognised in the income
- statement.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate the company measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the Associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 Accounting policies (continued) '

. Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Company's balance sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
" assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs -
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. .

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability or a
financial asset and of allocating the interest expense over the relevant period..The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts), through the expected life of the financial liability or asset or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the net carrylng amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Company's financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the Company's business model for managing financial essets; and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial assets are classified as ‘measured at amortised cost if both the followmg conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash ﬂows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets are classified as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both the
following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO 'THE. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehenswe income. .

Recognltlon of expected credit losses

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is
measured at amortised cost, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, a lease
receivable, a contract asset or a loan commitment and a financial guarantee contract to WhICh impairment
reqmrements apply. -

At each reporting date, the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. The expected credit losses are assessed conS|der|ng all reasonable
and supportable information, including that which is forward-looking.

If at the reporting date the credit risk on a financial instrument-has not increased significantly since initial

recognition, an entity shall measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
. 12-months expected credit losses. The amount of credit losses (or reversal) is recognised in profit or loss,

as an impairment gain or loss at the reporting date. :

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset along with substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownershlp to a third party. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying value, the sum of the consideration received and receivable, and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognlsed in other comprehenswe income and accumulated in equnty is recogmsed in
the income statement. .

Financial Iiabilities and equity
Financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

(a) financial liabilities at fair value through- proft or loss - these include derivatives that are liabilities which
are subsequently measured at fair value.

(b) financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-recognition or
when continuing. involvement applies.

" (c) financial guarantee contracts to which (a) or (b) does not apply are subsequently measured as the
higher of - the amount of loss allowance determined, or, the amount |n|t|aIIy recognised less the
cumulative amount of income recognised. - :

(d) commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate to which (a) or (b) does not apply are
subsequently measured as the higher of - the amount of loss allowance determined, or, the amount
initially recognised less the cumulative amount of income recognised.

(e) contingent consideration recognised as an acquirer in a business combination which is measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2 Accounting pdlicies (continued)

Impalrment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. An |ntang|ble asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for |mpa|rment at least annually and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. .

Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments.of the time value of money and the risks speC|f' cto
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash- generatmg unit) is estimated to be less than its ‘carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an |mpa|rment loss is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and in hand, mcludmg short term dep05|ts with a
maturity date of three months or less from the date of acquasltlon and amounts mcluded in cash pooling
with group companies.

Borrowings

All borrowings ‘are initially. recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transactlon costs.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of
transaction costs, and the -amount due on redemption belng recognlsed as a charge to the lncome
statement over the period of the relevant borrowing. ’

Interest expense is recognlsed on the basis of the effectlve interest method and is included in finance

" costs.

Borrowmgs are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an uncondltlonal rlght to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs ’

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifyirng  assets are
added to the cost of those assets until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their.intended
use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

In instances where the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are the borrowing costs that are capitalised. In instances where the
Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, a
capitalisation rate is applied based on the weighted average cost of general borrowings during the period.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the indom_e statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructlve) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

- Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are meastred at the fair value of the cash or
.other résources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If
payment is deferred and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present
value basis.

-3 Critical a'i:counting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, described in note 2, the directors of the Company
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estlmates

The estimates and underlying assumptions .are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the perlod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that -
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
penods

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key. assumptlons concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation -

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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VNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 Critical accounting judgements and key.sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
. AR .

Revenue recognition

Revenue includes an estimate of the sales value of units supplied to customers between the date of the
last meter reading and the year end. This is calculated by reference to data received through the third
party settlement systems, as described further below, together with estimates of consumption not yet
processed through settlements and selling price estimates. These estimates are sensitive to the
assumptions used in determining the portion of sales not billed and based on actual meter readings at the
reporting date. A change in these assumptions of 2% would impact revenue by £24m.

Revenue is valued at average pence per unit, and any unbilled revenue is treated as an unbilled debtor.
This figure is adjusted based on a judgement of the likelihood of collecting the outstandmg debt based on
historical data.

Impalrment of investment in subsidiary and associates

The Company performs impairment testing of investment in subsidiaries and associates where there is an
indication of potential impairment.- The impairment review involves a number of assumptions including
discount rates and cashflow forecast. These assumptions are reviewed annually to ensure they are
- reliable. .

Onerous contracts prowsuon :

The amount recognised in the financial statements represents the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle present obligations at the balance sheet date. The assumptions in determining the
provision include customer tenure, discount rate and expected cashflows. The provision is determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. A +/- £10/MWh change in
energy price across the forward curve in 2023 has a +/- £1m impact on fixed onerous contract provision.

Critical Jjudgements in applying accounting policies

There are no critical judgements. that the Directors-have made in the process of applying the accounting
policies of the Company, that are deemed to have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. .

4 Revenue

Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax, arises entirely in the United Kingdom and is attributable

to the continuing activities of the supply of electricity and gas and meter reading and related services.

This includes an estimate of the sales value of units supplied to customers between the date of the.last
_meter reading and the year end.

The analysis of the Companys revenue for the year from contmumg operations is as follows:

2022 2021
£m . £m
Supply of energy and related services s 12,580 - 7,927
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4 Revenue (continued)

The disaggAregation of revenue is as follows: . - o _
2022 12021

. £m . £m

Electricity Supply S A ' . . ‘
Domestic n : - 3,362 2,333
Small Medium Enterprise - ‘ . I 588 - 343

EDF Business Solutions ' , ‘ ' ) 6,415 . 3,977.
"Gas Supply o ‘ ‘ ' ’ ' :
'Domestic ' « S ' 2,143 1,244

' Small Medium Enterprlse . ' : : o : 72 30

12,580 7,927

Revenue includes an amount of £650m (2021' £nil) received from the Government under Energy Bill
Support Scheme (EBSS) and £825m (2021: £nil) received from the Government under Energy Pnce
Guarantee (EPG) scheme and Energy Bill Rehef Scheme (EBRS)

5 Energy and related purchases . ‘
’ . 2022 ’ 2021

. _— : £m £m
Purchase of energy - 11,027 - 6,236 '
. Distribution and tran_émission . . _ 1,047 " - 910
" Other energy related purchases o 1 ' 1
o 12,075 7,147
6 Personnel expenses
' A 2022 2021
. £m E£m
Wages and salaries : . 132 137
Social security costs , 15 ' 15
Other pension costs ) o o 24 . 33
Total Personnel expenses o 171 - 185-
Restructuring costs - ) )

L : ‘ : : : 171 : 210
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6 Personnel expenses (contlnued)

.- The monthly average number of persons employed by the Company (|ncludmg directors) during the year i
" analysed by category was as follows:

2022 2021

. : o o . " No. No.

Administration and support ’ : , 383 420

Other departments ‘ ' T 3,129 - 3,584

' ' 3,512 4,004

7 Other operating income
" The analysis of the Companys other operatlng income for the year is as follows: .
: 2022 . 2021

. . : : £m £m
Industry levy claim (i) : : _ S 116 87
Other income - . _ o 23 3
’ : : 139 90

(i) Under Ofgem ] regulatory framework relevant costs incurred as a result of taking on customers from
suppllers that have exited the energy market wrll be recoverable through-the mdustry levy.

8 Directors’' remuneration
The Directors' remuneration for the year was as follows:

q : v - 2022 2021
. £m £m
Aggregate remuneration. | : 3 2

During the year the number of directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was as follows:

2022 2021
R . No. No.
Accruing benefits under defined benefit pension scheme . . 7 7
In respect of the highest paid director:
' 2022 2021 |
. : _ ‘ £m £m
Aggregate remuneration : : 1 1
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8 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The Directors of the Company are paid by the Company for services provnded to all companies within the
Group and have been set out above.

No Director (2021: none) held any interests in the shares or debentures of the Company or the Group that -
are required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006.

The aggregate remuneration includes basic salary and amounts received under annual incentive

schemes.
9 Operating Profit s
Operating profit for the year was arrlved at after charging the foIIowmg gams/losses .
2022 - 2021
' _ , : . . £m £m
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 14) : 1 1
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) _ 84 80
Depreciation on right of use assets ' . 2
Research costs . - 1 1
1

Loss on dlsposal of Property, Plant and Equment . ‘ - -

In 2022 an amount of £760,000 (2021: £6,14,000) was b‘aid to Deloitte LLP for audit services. This charge
was borne by another Group company in both the current'and prior year. In 2022, amounts payable to
Deloitte LLP by the Company in respect of other assurance services were £nil (2021: £nil).

10 Investment income

2022 2021
) , £m £m
Interest receivable from other Group companies ’ ' 1 -1
Other finance income 3 _ "2
’ 4 3
{
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11 Finance costs )
’ 2022 2021

A . £m £m
_ Interest payable on loans from other Group companies : . ' 1 1

1 1

Interest payable on loans from other group companies are unsecured and repayable on demand.

12 Tax on loss on continuing ordinary activities
(a) Tax charged / (credited) in the income statement: -

2022 2021
£m £m

Current taxation
UK corporation tax credit on prof'ts / loss made in the year . ' ’ (63) y (14)
Adjustments in respect of previous years’ reported tax credits ) - -
Total current tax credit in the year (63) (14)
Deferred taxation . . :
Current year credit ' ' (3) (8)
Adjustments in respect of previous years’ reported tax.charges- ' -
Effect of decreased tax rate on opening balance . - - (1)
Total deferred tax charge / (credit) in the year : - (3) . (9)
Income tax credit reported in the income statement ' (66) (23)

(b)The tax on loss before tax for the year is same as (2021: lower than) the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19. 00% (2021 : 19.00%). .

The. charge / (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit / (logs) in the income statement as

follows: .
' 2022 2021
£m £m
Loss before tax ~ (324) . (102)
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2021: 19. 00%) (62) (19)
Effect of: _ : :
Non-deductible lmpalrment ' : : ' S - C-
. Other'non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income ) 4) -
Current year effect of deferred tax rate change . . (2)
Adjustment to prior-year corporation tax credit : . ' : - : -
Adjustment to prior year deferred tax charge A _ - o -
Impact of increased tax rate on opening deferred tax balance : - (2)
Tax (credit) / charge reported in the income statement (66) . (23)
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12 Tax on loss on continuing ordinary activities (continued)
(c) Other factors aﬁecting the tax charge for the year:

The accounting for deferred tax follows the accounting treatment of the underlying item on which deferred
tax is being provided and hence is booked within equity if the underlying item is booked within equity.

The closing deferred tax balance at 31 December 2022 has been calculated at 25. 00% (31 December
2021: 25.20%). This is the average tax rate at which the reversal of the net deferred tax liability is
expected to qoceur.

13 lntangiblé assets .
Other

Software  Licence ConO rcsets inder.  Total
construction
- £m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation -
At 1 January 2022 . ) 646 562 58 34 1,300
Additions ) : - 22 .10 32
Disposals - - - — -
Transfers 27 - - (27) -
At 31 December 2022 : 673 . 562 80 . 17 1,332
Amortisation and impairment ’ . '
At 1.January 2022 (528) (552) (28) - (1,108)
. Amortisation charge (60) (5) (19) - (84) .
" At 31 December 2022 (588) . (557) T (47) ' - (1,192)
Carrying amount . ‘ ' . ' :
At 31 December 2022 . - 85 . 5 33 17 140
At 31 December 2021 . 118 10 30 34 192

Other Intangible assets under construction are recognised as the total of cost of purchase, development
and installation of intangible assets to bring them into use. For the assets to be brought into use, they are
7 transferred to the relevant intangible -asset classes where they are amortised per the policy of the .
intangible asset classes. No amortisation is recognised prior to these transfers.

“On 1.September 2005, EDF Energy Customers Limited entered into a licence with SEEBOARD Energy
Limited and SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited which resulted in these companies licensing their electricity -
and gas business (primarily being the SEEBOARD brand together with the customer lists and the right to
service the customer contracts) associated therewith for 10 years. This agreement was entered into to
facilitate the unification of the business under a single brand within a single company.
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13 Intangible assets (continued)

In 2014, a variation to the above licences was made, resulting in a fee of £20m payable by EDF Energy
Customers Limited to SEEBOARD Energy Limited and SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited. The residual
balanceé of the licence at the time of the termination, being £25.9m, along with the termination payment,
being £20m, is now amortised over 9 years in line with the contractual terms of the licence agreement.

" Annual impairment reviews are undertaken-and any impairment in value .is recognised. once identified.

Customer contract additions of £22m (2021: £24m) represent the costs of residential and SME gas and
electricity contracts that were acquired during the year.

14 Property, plant and equipment

Other
property,
plant and _ ’ Assets under -
equipment  Meter assets construction Total -
£m £m : £m : £m -
Cost . _ ' .
At 1 January 2022 42 10 2 54
Additions : . - . - 2 2
Transfers : o - . 1 (1 -
At 31 December 2022 42 11 3 56
Depreciation ' . :
At 1 January 2022 (30) 9) S (39)
Charge for the year ' - (1) - (1)
At 31 December 2022 (30) (10) - (40)
Carrying amount _ '
At 31 December 2022 12 1 3 - 16.
At 31'December 2021 12 1 2 ‘ 15

_ Assets under construction are recognised as the total of cost of purchase, construction and installation of
tangible assets to bring them into use. For the assets to be brought into use, they are transferred to the
relevant tangible asset classes where they are depreciated as per the policy of that tanglble asset class.
No depreciation is recognised prior to these transfers.
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15 Investmentin subéidiary ahd associate undertakings -

Reconciliation of investment in subsidiary and associate undei’takings

Opening Balance

- Additions
Closing Balance v
Investment in subsidiaries

Cost y

At 1 January 2021 .
Additions

At 31 December 2021 -
Additions '
At 31 December 2022
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2022
At 31 December 2021

2022
150

150

£m

86
12

98

98

.
98

98

The subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2022 which are incorporated in the United Kingdom and are
‘registered and operate in England and Wales, or Scotland (unless otherwise stated), are as follows:

Name of subsidiary
Pod -Point Group Holdings Plc

Pod Point Holdings Limited*A
Pod Point Limited*

Open Charge Limited*
Pod Point Asset one Limited*

Pod Point Norge AS (Norway)* (1)

Principal activity

Provider of charging

infrastructure for
electric vehicles

Holding Company
Provision for charging

- infrastructure for
~ electric vehicles

Financial activities . -
Provision for charging
infrastructure  assets
for electric vehicles

Dormant company

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held
2022

53.83%

53.83%
53.83%

53.83%
53.83%

53.83% .

2021 .

54.05%

-54.05%

54.05%

54.05%
54.05%

54.05%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 Investment in subsidiafy and associate undertakings (continued) -

~ *Indirectly heId
(1) Registered Address: Engebrets vei 3 0275 Oslo.

- Unless stated otherwise, the registered address of the subsidiary undertaklngs listed above is 28-42
Banner Street Banner Street London, England, EC1Y 8QE. .

. Investment in associates

£m
Cost : ) , . '
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 ' . ' - 52
At 31 December 2022 ' - 52
Carrying amount ' ' o ' .
At31December2022 . . - . ' ’ 52

At 31 December 2021 - . R - - | o 52

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest '
in ordinary shares and voting

- Name of Associate : Prineipal activity rights held
‘ ' 2022 2021
EDF Energy Services Limited : DeVeIopment of 50% / 49% . 50%/49%
: generation and supply . ' .
: ~ of electricity ) '
The Barkantine Heat and Power Generation ~and . 50% /49% 50% / 49%
- Company Limited (1). - ~ supply of heat and . -
) © electricity . ) -

ESSCI Limited (1) : S Holding Company ‘ 50% 1 49% 50% / 49%
"ESSCI Engineering Services Limited* (1) Holding Company '50% '/ 49% '50% / 49%
Imtech Engineering Services North Ltd*  Provision ) of -~ 50%/49% - 50% 149% |
(3) . E . mechanical . and - .

5 ’ _ _electrical services ;

Imtech Engineering Services London &  Provision. of 50% / 49% 50% / 49%
South Ltd* (3) : mechanical and i

‘ electrical services ' ‘ .
Imtech Aqua Ltd* (3) " Holding Company 50% /49% - 50% / 49%
Imtech Aqua Building Services Ltd* (3)  Provision. of . 50%/49% 50% / 49%
. mechanical - and
_ - A . electrical services . o
Imtech Aqua Controls Ltd* (3) Provision of building 50% / 49% © 50% / 49%
o ' E - management systems . _ .
Imtech Low Carbon Solutions Ltd* (3) Dormant Company - 50%/49% 50% / 49%
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15 Investment in subsidiary and associate undertakings (continued)

ESSCI Technical Facilities Management Holding Company 50% / 49% 50% / 49%

Limited* (1) . i . :

Inviron Holdings Limited™ (4) Holding Company 50% 1 49% 50% /49% -

Imtech Inviron Limited* (2) _ Provisions and = 50% /49% 50% / 49%
management of ‘ ‘
building services and

' systems }
Inviron Property Limited* (4) Property Company . 50%/49% - 50%/49%
Imtech Aqua Maintenance Limited* (4)  Provision of 50% / 49% 50% / 49%
. . maintaenance of - ‘
building engineering
i . . services : v
ESSCI Technical Services Limited* (1)  Holding Company 50% / 49% 50% / 49%
Capula Group Limited* (5) Holding Company 50% / 49% 50% / 49%
~ Capula Limited* (5) Provision of IT 50% / 49% 50% / 49%

Services ' _

ESSCI Ireland Limited* (1) Holding Company ... 50%/49% 50% / 49%

Suir Engineering. Limited* (Ireland) (6) Provision and 50% /1 49% - 50% / 49%

. : ' i maintenance of a ) -

digital innovation

system focused on
home services

Suir Engineerihg Sweden AB* (Sweden) Provision and 50% /1 49% - 50% / 49%
, T ‘ maintenance of a
" digital innovation

system focused on
home services

Imtech Suir Qatar LLC* (Qatar) Provision - ~ and 50% / 49% . 50% / 49%
maintenance of a : .
digital innovation

system focused on
home services

Breathe Energ'y Limited* (6) Energy Management 50% / 49% '50% / 49%
_ Services S
. Breathe Asset Management Services Management ‘of  -50%/49% 50% / 49%
Ltd* (6) energy assets
SPIE UK Limited* (7) _ . Holding company = - 50%/49% 0%
Environmental Engineering Limited* (7)  Provision of  .50% /40% 0%
. i multi-technical -
services,
maintenance, and

engineering solutions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 Investment in subsidiary and associate undertakings (continued)

SPIE Limited*’ ) . Provision of 50% / 49% 0%
multi-technical : :
services,
maintenance, and.
engineering solutions

SPIE WHS Limited* (7) o Provision of © 50% /49% 0%

‘ . mechanical, electrical
and  instrumentation
services ) .
SPIE Scotshield Limited* (7) Provision of 50% / 49% 0%
: " multi-technical .
_services,
maintenance, :and
engineering solutions

SPIE Power and Nuclear UK Limited* (7) Dormant 50% / 49% 0%

SPIE Leven Energy Semces Limited* Provision of 50% 1 49% 0%

«(7) - muiti-technical -

Co services,
maintenance, and
v ' engineering solutions : :

SPIE FS Northern UK Limiited* 7) -Provision of facilities 50% / 49% 0%
management services

SPIE MSS Clean Technology Limited* Provision - of 50% / 49% 0%

7 “multi-technical -

) : services,
maintenance, and
engineering solutions
SPIE Environmental Engmeerlng (UK) Design and "Supply 50% / 49% 0%
Limited* (7) heating ventilating ’
o . and air conditioning
- engineering systems

Medical & Scientific Structures Limited* Dormant , 50% / 4% » 0%
o v _ .
*indirectly held

(1) Registered Address: Twenty 4th Floor, 20 Kingston Road, Staines Upon Thames, United Klngdom
TW18 4LG

(2) Registered Address: 5th Floor, John Stow House Bevis Marks London EC3A 7JB

(3) Registered Address: G&H House, Hooton Street, Carlton Road, Nottingham, NG3 5GL

(4) Registered Address: 3160, Sohhull Parkway Birmingham, Business Park Birmingham, B37 7YN

(5) Registered Address: Orion House, Unit 10 Walton Industrial Estate, Stone, Staffordshire, ST15 OLT
(6) Registered Address: 13a, Tottenham Mews, London, England, w1T 4AQ

(7) Registered Address: 1 Old Park Lane, Urmston Manchester England, M41 7HA

-Unless stated otherwise, the reglstered address of the associates listed above is 90 Whitfield Street,
London, W1T 4EZ. :
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16 Fihancial assets

: ‘ 2022 : 2021
‘Current financial assets : , £m £m
Loans to associates S 22 4
Total . ' - : ' : C 22 . 4

" Non-current financial assets . ' , A '
Loans to associates B : © 13 1
Total - : ' . T 13- . 00N

The £13m non-current loan’ facility to associates is unsecured and accrues mterest at 6.275%. It is
repayable in instalments, with a maturity date of 30 June 2027 During the year the associate repaid
£2.6m.

The .current loan facmty to associates of £22m was issued on 15 December 2022, is unsecured -and
- accrues interest at 5.44%. Itis repayable in instalments; with a maturity date of 1 June 2023.

- 17 Trade and other receivables ) _ .
2022 2021

. . . . £m _ £m
Trade receivables I , " 1,875 1,148
Allowance for expected credit losses . - {340y (228)
Unbilled revenue : : ' - .. 1,280 . 779
Amiounts owed by Group companles (Note 24) - 2 2
Other debtors : ‘ ‘ 20 . 11

2,837 1,712

Amounts owed by Group compani'es are unsecured and repayable on demand. The Directors consider
that the carrying amount of receivables approximates to their fair value.

- 18 Cash and cash equivalents .
2022 <2021

o £m T E£m
Cash pooling with Group companies : 63 o -
Restricted cash ' _ ) ‘ ' - 223 . -

C ‘ 286 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The Company is included in a cash concentration arrangement which physically offsets cash balances
and overdrafts with other participating Group companies. In the current year, an amount of £63m (2021:
£Nil) is pooled with other group companies.

- Restricted cash of £223m (2021: £Nil) represent funds received in advance under the Energy Bill Support

Scheme as at 31 December 2022. The amount is held within a restricted bank account and the amount is
not available to finance Group’s day-to day operations. until rebate is provided to customers.

19 Other liabilities

2022 - 2021

o , . £m £m

Trade Creditors : i , : 969 : © 606
Accruals and deferred income ' : ' 281 199
Amounts owed to other Group companies (Note 24) - 2,320 ' 1,423
Other Payables . , B 426 343
Contract liabilities ’ . - 223 ‘ -
o 4,219 B _2,571

Contract liabilities of £223m (2021 £nil) represent restricted funds recelved in. advance under the Energy
Bill Support Scheme (EBSS) for the month of January 2023.

Amounts owed.to other Group companres are interest free, unsecured and are repayable on demand.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other liabilities approximates to their fair value.
Amounts owed to other Group companies are interest free, unsecured and are repayable on demand.
-. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other liabilities approximates to their fair value.

20 Borrowings :
' 2022 2021

‘ - g : : ‘ “£m . £m
Borrowings due within one year (Note 24) ' . - - " 13
' o S ‘ - 13

Borrowings of £Nil (2021: £13m) are owed to EDF Energy Limited. The loan payable of £13m at the
beginning of the year was settled on 30 June 2022.
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21 Provisions for liabilities -

Onerous .
contracts . Restructuring Other costs - Total
: £m o E£m £m £m
At 1 January 2022 Y 18 C 111
Increase in provisions . 55 - 11 66
Provisions utilised - (92) (17 . - (109)
At 31 December 2022 55 . 1 - 12 68
The provisions have been split as follows: .
' . 2022 . 2021 -
Current Current
, : ' £m £m’
Restructuring costs - , : o 18
Onerous contracts . . ~ ’ 55 .92
Other costs o . ‘ ‘ 12 1
’ ' 68 111

The restructuring provision covers severance cost relating to the employees that has been announced will
be impacted by the restructuring. All provisions are expected to be utilised within 12 months.

Onerous contract provision of £565m arising during the year is in relation to fixed wind PPA portfolio due to
higher energy prices increasing the impact of buyback losses from low wind output. The corresponding
expense is recorded within Energy and related purchases. Onerous contract provision amounting to
£92m were utilised in the current year.

Other costs relates to legal and insurance cases expected to be settled in the next 12 months.

22 Deferred tax

The following are the’ major deferred tax (liabilities) and assets recognised by the company and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting period:

Accelerated Short term )
tax Losses timing Total
depreciation. ’ - differences
: £m £Em - £m : £m
At 1 January 2021 - A - ' - 5 5
Credit/(charge) to income: ' : ‘
Current year ‘ N - 2 ' 8
- Adjustments in respect of previous . 1 } () |
years’ reported tax charges , .
Effect of decreased tax, rate on .’ ) N 2 1

opening liability
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22 Deferred tax (contiriued)

At 31 December 2021 . o 6 - 8 - 14 .
Credit/(charge) to income: ' . '

Current year 9 (2) (4) 3
Adjustments in respect of previous ) 25 ; .

years’ reported tax charges
Effect of increased tax rate on opening
liability :

.« At 31 December 2022 - 13 ' S - . 4. 17

The Company has unrecognised tax losses of £6m (2021: £6m). The losses give rise to a deferred tax
asset of £2m (2021: £2m) which has not been recognised as it is uncertain whether future taxable profits
will be available against which these losses can be utilised. These losses can however be carried forward
indefinitely for offset against future profits, should they arise.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Com ahy has a legally enforceable right to do so.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting-purposes:

2022 - 2021

. A : £m . Em

Deferred tax liabilities o A ' - -
Deferred tax assets ' 17 14
‘ ' 17 14

23 Share capital _
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

2022 C 2021
No. m £m No. m £m
Ordinary shares of £1.00 each 100 100 100 - 100

The Company has one class of Ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

24 Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework from

disclosing transactions with other wholly owned members of the group, which would require disclosure
under IAS 24, ’

Key mana'gefnent personnel for the Company are the Directors of the Company. Please refer to note 8 for
details of their remuneration. There are no other transactions with key management personnel during the
year (2021: none).
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24 Related party transactions (continuéd)

Amounts owed by related parties :
: " Other related

™~

' g parties Subsidiaries Associate * *Parent
2022 . £m £m £m T £m
Financial assets : : - - 35 - 63
Amounts receivable from related , ’
party , . 2 - : - -

Other related

: parties Subsidiaries Associate
2021 . £m £m £m
Financial assets - - 15
Amounts receivable from related party 2 - -

Amounts oWed to related parties
' . T . . ] Parent
2022 o : » £m
Amounts due to other Group companies : _ _ 2,320
’ Parént
2021 A £m
Borrowings ' : ' 13

Amounts payable to related party - 1,423

25 Parent undertakmg and controlllng party

EDF Energy Limited holds a 100% interest in the Company and is considered to be the immediate parent
company. EDF Energy Holdings Limited is the smallest group for which consolidated financial statements
are prepared. Copies of that company's consolidated financial statements may be obtained from the

registered office at 90 Whitfield Street, London, England, W1T 4EZ. :

At 31 December 2022, Electricité de France SA,.a company incorporated.in France,‘ is regarded by the
Directors as the Company's ultimate parent company and controlling party. This is the largest group for

" which consolidated financial statements are prepared. Copies of that company's consolidated financial

statements may be obtained from the registered office at Electrlcne de France SA, 22-30 Avenue de
Wagram, 75382, Paris, Cedex 08, France.
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